
Rye City Planning Commission Minutes 
July 19, 2016 

 
MEETING ATTENDANCE:  
Planning Commission Members: Other: 

 Nick Everett, Chair  Christian K. Miller, AICP, City Planner 
 Martha Monserrate, Vice-Chair  Carolyn Cunningham, CC/AC Chair 
 Andrew Ball  Melissa Johannessen, AICP, LEED AP 
 Laura Brett (arrived late)   
 Hugh Greechan   
 Richard Mecca        
 Alfred Vitiello        

 1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 

 
I. HEARINGS 
 
None. 
 
II. ITEMS PENDING ACTION 
 
1. 167 Purchase Street 
 

 At the request of the applicant, this item was adjourned to the next meeting. 
 
 
2. 11 Elm Place 
 

 Ms. Eva Grewe, the applicant’s representative, was present for the application. 
The City Planner noted that the applicant has previously requested, and was 
granted, three one-year extensions to the original approval. He noted that the 
present request is in keeping with the spirit and intent of the original approval and 
that there have been no significant changes in regulations or the surrounding 
conditions to warrant the denial of the request.  

 
ACTION: Martha Monserrate made a motion, seconded by Richard Mecca, to 

approve a one-year extension of Site Plan application number SP#322, 
which was carried by the following vote: 
 
Nick Everett, Chair:    Aye 
Martha Monserrate, Vice-Chair:  Aye 
Andrew Ball:     Aye 
Laura Brett:     Absent 
Hugh Greechan:    Aye 
Richard Mecca:    Aye 
Alfred Vitiello:    Absent 
 



Rye City Planning Commission Minutes (Cont.) 
July 19, 2016 
Page 2 of 7 
 
 

2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 

32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 

3. 11 Trails End 1 
 

 Laura Brett arrived. 
 
 Mr. Andrew Willard, the applicant, was present for the application. The City 

Planner noted that the applicant has requested a reduction in the scope of the 
project and a revision to the mitigation plan. The Commission asked Mr. 
Willard if the application still included the construction of two decks. Mr. 
Willard replied yes, but stated that the overall amount of decking has been 
reduced from 1,040 sf to 675 sf. He also stated that the number of concrete 
footings has been reduced from 18 to 11. 

 
 The Commission asked if the intention was still to do the work by hand. Mr. 

Willard said yes. He also stated that the mitigation ratio was still 2-to-1, but 
the amount of mitigation had been reduced accordingly with the reduction in 
deck area. 

 
ACTION: Martha Monserrate made a motion, seconded by Andrew Ball, to approve 

a modification of Wetland Plan application number WP#414, which was 
carried by the following vote: 
 
Nick Everett, Chair:    Aye 
Martha Monserrate, Vice-Chair:  Aye 
Andrew Ball:     Aye 
Laura Brett:     Aye 
Hugh Greechan:    Aye 
Richard Mecca:    Aye 
Alfred Vitiello:    Absent 

 
 
4. 120 Old Post Road 31 
 

 Ms. Cunningham left the meeting. 
 
 Mr. Jonathan Kraut, attorney, Mr. Jerry Schwalbe, engineer, and Mr. Jeff 

Wyzinski, architect, were present for the application. Mr. Kraut stated that the 
concept for the site has not changed since the application appeared before the 
City Council for the zoning change. He noted that per the Council’s comments, 
the setbacks were increased according to an averaging rule agreed upon by the 
Council.  

 
 Mr. Kraut stated that the development consists of a 122-unit multi-family 

development configured in five separate buildings. He noted that the previous 
site plan proposed one large building with a central courtyard and below-grade 



Rye City Planning Commission Minutes (Cont.) 
July 19, 2016 
Page 3 of 7 
 
 

1 
2 
3 
4 

6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 

parking. He stated that as a result of conversations with many people, including 
the fire department, as well as because of light, space, and access factors, the 
project was redesigned as five separate buildings with parking below grade. 

 
 With respect to parking, Mr. Kraut stated that 183 spaces are required and 223 5 

spaces are proposed. He stated that 215 will be below grade and eight spaces 
will be designated for visitors in front of the amenities building. He also stated 
that 30 tandem spaces will be provided in the below-grade garage for use by unit 
owners. 

 
 Mr. Kraut described the overall site plan. He stated that buildings 1, 4, and 5 are 

closest to Old Post Road and are three stories tall, while buildings 2 and 3 toward 
the rear of the site are four stories tall. He noted that all of the buildings are 
zoning compliant. Mr. Kraut stated that the mechanicals for each building will be 
hidden from view. Mr. Kraut stated that the site plan includes removal of 85 
existing trees and the planting of 195 new trees. 

 
 Mr. Kraut stated that access to the site will be in the same location as it is 

currently with a secondary access on Old Post Road that will be limited to trucks, 
deliveries, emergency vehicles, etc. He noted that the secondary access may be 
explored for use by residents as well, due to existing traffic concerns. 

 
 Mr. Kraut stated that there will be a net reduction in stormwater compared to 

existing conditions. He stated that green space is proposed on the parking 
garage roof, which will function as part of the stormwater system. 

 
 Mr. Kraut noted that there will be a temporary structure housing the sales office, 

which will be removed once the building is constructed.  
 

 The Commission asked whether there had been any additional changes to the 
zoning and Mr. Kraut responded no. The Commission asked about the averaging 
of the setbacks. The City Planner stated that the revised setback provision allows 
a small portion of the development to extend between 100’ and 150’ from the 
property line. Mr. Kraut noted that the applicant came to an agreement with the 
Osborn not to extend any further into the side yard. 

 
 The Commission asked whether the current plans were reviewed with the 

Osborn. Mr. Kraut responded that the project had been discussed with them but 
plans have not been sent to the Osborn. The Commission requested that the 
applicant send a copy of the plans to the Osborn prior to the public hearing. 

 
 Mr. Schwalbe described the stormwater management plan. He stated that there 

will be a 0.84-acre stormwater basin at the bottom of the site near Old Post 
Road. He noted that the majority of the site drains to Old Post Road, while a 



Rye City Planning Commission Minutes (Cont.) 
July 19, 2016 
Page 4 of 7 
 
 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 

7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 

small portion drains to the Playland access drive. He stated that the top surface 
of the parking deck will function as a green roof, and the site will include five rain 
gardens. He noted that there will be a slight reduction in impervious area from 
3.0 acres to 2.9 acres. 

 
 Mr. Schwalbe stated that the majority of the grading will occur in the southern 6 

portion of the site. He stated that the runoff from all of the buildings will be caught 
and brought to the corner of the site. He stated that the stormwater management 
system will provide a reduction in peak flow and will meet water quality 
objectives. Mr. Schwalbe also noted that a seed mix is proposed for the 
stormwater basin that will be able to handle inundation. 

 
 The Commission asked if the stormwater system currently functions. Mr. 

Schwalbe stated that he believed it did. The Commission also asked about the 
function of the off-site system. It was noted that the applicant should quantify the 
area of what is going into the off-site system now compared to what is proposed.  

 
 The Commission discussed the green roof on top of the below-grade parking. 

The City Planner stated that the below-grade parking will need to withstand a 
considerable amount of weight and that an exercise in value engineering may 
end up causing a design change. Mr. Schwalbe stated that the green roof is a 
major component of the stormwater system and to take it out would require a 
redesign of the entire system, which they do not want to do.  

 
 The Commission asked about the sanitary system. Mr. Schwalbe noted that 

additional survey work is currently underway, and they will need to model the 
flow to make sure there are no issues. He stated that the pipe makes a jog to 
cross Old Post Road and the City Engineer wants the applicant to investigate the 
piping further. 

 
 Mr. Kraut noted that with respect to traffic, a detailed traffic analysis was done 

prior to the City Council meeting and was reviewed by the City’s traffic 
consultant. He stated that the currently proposed project, which includes fewer 
units than originally proposed before the Council meeting, would have no greater 
impact than the previous site plan.  

 
 The Commission asked if there was a way to calculate trip generation based on 

vacancy rate, occupancy, etc. The City Planner stated that trip generation is 
based on land use and is calculated for residential uses using the number of 
units. 

 
 The City Planner noted that possible mitigation measures include a signal and 

creation of a right-turn lane on Playland Access Drive. He also stated that there 
is the $10,000/unit capital improvement fund allotment that was established to 



Rye City Planning Commission Minutes (Cont.) 
July 19, 2016 
Page 5 of 7 
 
 

1 
2 
3 

5 
6 
7 
8 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 
45 

offset impacts of the project. Mr. Kraut noted that the capital improvement fund is 
not limited to use on the subject property but could be used elsewhere. 

 
 The Commission questioned how the traffic study could say there is no impact 4 

when the intersection level of service (LOS) is already at F. The City Planner 
noted that compared to a fully occupied office building, the proposed project has 
less of an impact.  

 
 The Commission asked if the applicant considered an exit-only driveway onto Old 9 

Post Road. Mr. Kraut stated that it was not required by the zoning, but it could be 
explored. He noted that in the past there have been concerns from neighbors 
about such an exit. The City Planner stated that there could be a long queue 
length on Playland Access Drive and a right-turn lane would improve flow, but 
there may not be enough property to provide one. Mr. Kraut stated that the 
applicant will analyze this as well as the possibility of a right-turn-only exit onto 
Old Post Road, as well as a three-way stop. 

 
 The Commission noted that the buildings are stepped back on the fourth floors 

and asked about the mechanics. Mr.  stated that all mechanicals are concealed 
on the roofs. Mr.  pointed out the gatehouse on the site plan and noted that it is 
very small. He stated that there is no commercial kitchen, only a “warming 
kitchen.”  

 
 Mr.  described the amenities building, Building 5. He stated that at the ground 

level, there is storage, loading areas, areas for office staff, the entrance and 
lobby, multipurpose space, and gathering space. On the courtyard level is the 
pool, multipurpose room with warming kitchen, wine cellar, two visitor suites, 
fitness room and locker rooms. He stated that there are also six units on the top 
floor. He stated that the building appears as two stories from the courtyard and 
three stories from Old Post Road. 

 
 Mr. Kraut noted that the amenities will be for residents only and the applicant will 

accept a condition in the resolution specifying such. The Commission agreed that 
the resolution will include a condition stating that all onsite amenities are to be for 
the use of project residents only.  

 
 Mr. Kraut stated that the project includes 104 two-bedroom units having an 

average of 1,456 sf and 18 one-bedroom units having an average of 1,035 sf. He 
stated that there are no three-bedroom units, although some of the larger two-
bedroom units have a den.  

 
 The Commission asked about trash collection. Mr.  stated that the trash 

collection area will be on the parking level and will be a covered area fully 
enclosed within the building. He stated that there will be chutes from each floor to 
the parking level, and trash will be collected from each chute area by building 



Rye City Planning Commission Minutes (Cont.) 
July 19, 2016 
Page 6 of 7 
 
 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 

8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 

27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 
45 

employees and transported to the central trash storage area. He stated that 
recycling will be handled the same way. The Commission asked if there was 
adequate space within the building to accommodate a trash area of sufficient 
size for 120 residential units. Mr.  stated that the trash area has not been fully 
designed yet, but there is over 3,200 sf of space available.  

 
 The Commission asked about ambulance access. Mr.  stated that main access to 7 

all of the buildings will be at Building 5, with at-grade access to each building 
through the courtyard. He noted that each building has at least two points of 
entry. It was noted that an ambulance may be able to enter the parking garage 
and access the other buildings from there, but there is definitely not enough 
clearance for a fire truck to enter the garage. Mr. Kraut noted that they would like 
to allow access to at least some part of the garage by an ambulance. 

 
 The Commission asked if a generator is proposed, particularly for the elevators. 

Mr.  stated that no generator is proposed, but all elevators will have standard 
battery back-up. He noted that there will be one large elevator and one smaller 
elevator in each building. 

 
 It was noted that a construction phasing plan is being developed but at present, 

the construction schedule is about 18-20 months. Mr. Kraut stated that the 
parking deck will likely be constructed first, then probably the buildings at the rear 
of the site and Building 5. It was also noted that a lighting plan will be developed. 

 
 
5. Rye Country Day School – Modification 26 
 

 Nick Everett recused himself from the discussion of this application. 
 
 Mr. Leo Napior, attorney, Mr. Ronan Wilke of Peter Gisolfi Associates, and Mr. 

Chuck Utschig of Langan Engineering, were present for the application. Mr. 
Napior noted that the applicant is proposing three changes to the site plan, 
including modifications to the performing arts center, removal of the Lower 
School Multi-Purpose Building and construction of a Center for Creativity, and 
site improvements throughout the campus. Mr. Napior stated that the changes to 
the performing arts center will largely be interior, with the only exterior change 
being the removal of an existing patio that will be replaced by an atrium. Mr. 
Napior stated that the new Center for Creativity will replace the existing Lower 
School multi-purpose building. He noted that the building will be approximately 
26,000 sf with a 13,000-sf footprint, and a new parking area will be created near 
an existing small lot along the Boston Post Road side of the campus. 

 
 Mr. Utschig described the stormwater system. He stated that there is a 

stormwater basin at the corner of Cedar Street and Boston Post Road. He stated 
that there is a small increase in impervious area, but there will be no increase in 



Rye City Planning Commission Minutes (Cont.) 
July 19, 2016 
Page 7 of 7 
 
 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 

7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 

runoff and the project will meet the water quality requirements. He noted that the 
project is considered a redevelopment project per DEC guidelines. He also noted 
that some of the new construction will occur in areas of existing impervious 
surfaces. 

 
 The Commission requested that the calculations showing the reduction be made 6 

available prior to the public hearing. The City Planner also asked the applicant to 
be sure to review Chapter 174 of the City code. 

 
 The Commission noted that there would be no increase in traffic and FAR and no 

change in use. The Commission asked about tree removal and Mr. Wilke stated 
that some trees are being removed and some new trees will be planted, 
particularly along the sidewalk where there are few trees now. 

 
 The City Planner and the Commission discussed the new parking lot. The City 

Planner suggested that perhaps the spaces could be angled to improve 
circulation. Mr. Utschig noted that he could provide a blow-up of the plan showing 
more detail regarding islands and the width of the travel way to help alleviate 
concerns. The City Planner requested that they look at the design more closely 
and noted that it will need to accommodate delivery trucks, garbage trucks, etc. 
Mr. Utschig stated that they will review the design.   

 
 The Commission noted that the applicant should plan to attend the August 9th 

meeting, at which point the Commission believes it should be ready to set the 
public hearing. 

 
 
6. Minutes 
 

 The Commission reviewed the minutes from the June 21, 2016 meeting and 
made no changes. 

 
ACTION: Richard Mecca made a motion, seconded by Laura Brett, to approve the 

minutes from the June 21st meeting, which was carried by the following 
vote: 

 
Nick Everett, Chair:    Aye 
Martha Monserrate, Vice-Chair:  Aye 
Andrew Ball:     Aye 
Laura Brett:     Aye 
Hugh Greechan:    Aye 
Richard Mecca:    Aye 
Alfred Vitiello:    Absent 
 


	Rye City Planning Commission Minutes

